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2023 10
¢ 191 0 ) ()
HP ENTERPRISE HPE 6.35%
1 | P ENTRR 2045/10/15| 2.2
VIACOM INC PARA 6.875%
2 | e 2036/4/30| 1.5
ENERA INC ENACN 6. 754
3 | ChER 2076/6/15| 1.5
GENERAL MOTORS C GH 6. 60%
4 | VRN 2036/4/1 | 1.4
= | JPNORGAN CHASE JPH 6. 75 s
PERP '
TRIPADVISOR INC TRIP
6 | 7.00% 07/15/2025 2025/7/15] 1.2
GOODYEAR TIRE GT 5. 25%
7| 2031/7/15| 1.2
8 | VISTRA CORP VST 8.00% PERP 1.1
REGAL REXNORD RRX 6.40%
I Dol 2033/4/15| 1.1
ATE&T INC T Float
10 | o 202476712 1.1
2023
2023
2022 2023
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2019 10 31 147,770,941.31 20,145,612 107.37 14,638
2020 10 31 270,736,473.62 36,909,503 107.37 14,638
2021 10 31 465,898,446.53 63,515,935 115.13 15,696
2022 10 31 324,910,674.97 44,295,072 97.82 13,336
2022 444 ,598,109.79 60,612,060 109.37 14,910
413,452,432.37 56,365,970 105.35 14,362

395,718,062.28 53,948,243 104.46 14,241

362,139,954.66 49,370,540 98.28 13,399

373,064,495.85 50,859,883 103.47 14,106

357,600,549.70 48,751,683 101.21 13,798

328,732,900.53 44,816,156 95.84 13,066

10 324,910,674.97 44,295,072 97.82 13,336

11 330,684,249.45 45,082,184 100.89 13,754

12 319,760,926.56 43,593,007 99.57 13,574

2023 331,663,274.28 45,215,654 103.59 14,122
321,142,391.60 43,781,342 101.24 13,802
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2019 10 31 97,818,154.86 13,335,549 104.18 14,203
2020 10 31 177,235,749.33 24,162,550 101.12 13,786
2021 10 31 267,753,142.13 36,502,786 105.37 14,365
2022 10 31 193,938,718.92 26,439,666 86.75 11,827
2022 254,728,242.79 34,727,101 98.87 13,479
235,797,546.77 32,146,280 95.00 12,951

229,577,836.83 31,298,346 93.94 12,807

207,543,045.83 28,294,343 88.14 12,016

215,195,027.94 29,337,538 92.53 12,615

208,811,871.60 28,467,322 90.27 12,307

194,685,644.14 26,541,494 85.24 11,621

10 193,938,718.92 26,439,666 86.75 11,827

11 194,418,494 .23 26,505,073 89.21 12,162

12 187,416,429.41 25,550,482 87.80 11,970

2023 193,966,590.55 26,443,465 91.09 12,418
189,721,794.64 25,864,772 88.78 12,103
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2018 28 2019 10 3.00 409
2019 11 2020 10 3.00 409
2020 11 2021 10 3.00 409
2021 11 2022 10 3.00 409
2018 28 2019 10 7.31 7.18
2019 11 2020 10 0.00 -0.06
2020 11 2021 10 7.23 7.17
2021 11 2022 10 -15.04 -14.82
100x -
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2018
2018 28 2018 12 -5.74 =573
2019
2019 2019 12 15.40 15.22
2020
2020 2020 12 3.13 2.97
2021
2021 2021 12 3.36 3.29
2022
2022 2022 12 -14.13 -14.03
2023
2023 2023 1.68 1.69
100x +
2023
2018
BEMEED S UHIEE DR
(R BER (20188598 208) ~202352 8 280 (EA¥EIL
S [ T 5
TS ) s S (2) T2
110 F 1600
105 4 500
100 3400
o5 300
[0 200
B5 = 100
B0 Q

18/%/28  12/3/21 1949720 20/3/31 2049430 21/33 V930 223 RRSSI0
HEEREIL HEETITENE SESOELERIIEL O, ARG R SR D 1 OSSR EECE LS
HUET,

(HFIL) FEC (201 8ESH2BH ) ~20228F 2B 188 (BRI
1200 o v !
IS ) Dy R B W) e
110 e AR M N (20 00
105 SO0
100 400

35 1300
g0t 200
85t 1100
BG i i i i i i i i 0

18,9428 1973731 1979430 2003131 20930 2173131 2109630 2331 23930
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1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2018 28 1,474,517 78,027 1,396,490
2019 10 990,748 40,043 950,705
990,748 40,043 950,705

1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411

2019 11 1,421,815 286,894 2,531,411
2020 10 997,582 189,623 1,758,664
997,582 189,623 1,758,664

2,624,512 1,007,322 4,058,601

2020 11 (2,624,512) (1,097,322) (4,058,601)
2021 10 1,347,788 542,233 2,564,219

(1,347,788) (542,233) (2,564,219)

493,542 1,233,364 3,318,779

2021 11 (493,542) (1,233,364) (3,318,779)
2022 10 294,656 623,772 2,235,103

(294, 656) (623,772) (2,235,103)
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(i)

S&P A

2010 2018
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2017

2017

OFAC

UK

S1 604

2013
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OFAC EU UK
iii OFAC EU UK UK
2017 18 DPA
DPA
DPA
DPA
DPA DPA

GDPR
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2016/679
EU
EU
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2022 10 31
2022 2021
1 10,510,238 1,432,861 15,161,294 2,066,939
(202%20§§78)?§?’812’764 8,9,10 507,334,762 69,164,948 714,378,751 97,391,255
433,267 59,067 11,417,580 1,556,559
3,000,000 408,990 - -
521,278,267 71,065,866 740,957,625 101,014,753
2,109,908 287,644 2,641,424 360,105
13 618,472 84,316 850,397 115,935
2,728,380 371,960 3,491,821 476,040
518,549,887 70,693,906 737,465,804 100,538,713
324,656,538 44,260,426 467,272,293 63,703,232
12 3,318,779 452,449 4,058,601 553,300
97.82 13 115.13 16
193,893,349 26,433,480 270,193,511 36,835,481
12 2,235,103 304,712 2,564,219 349,580
86.75 12 105.37 14
2023 27
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2022 10 31

2022 2021
14 (118,111,258)  (16,102,108) 28,737,628 3,917,801
18,767,267 2,558,542 17,237,496 2,349,938
(99,343,991)  (13,543,566) 45,975,124 6,267,789
13,15 4,470,819 609,507 4,539,997 618,938
13,15 1,277,307 174,135 1,297,200 176,847
13,15 766,421 104,486 778,320 106,108
13,15 432,793 59,003 439,003 59,849
13,15 28,176 3,841 30,351 4,138
25,217 3,438 25,182 3,433
137,690 18,771 197,746 26,959
7,138,423 973,181 7,307,799 996,272
(106,482,414)  (14,516,748) 38,667,325 5,271,516
16 (7,364,810) (1,004,045) (6,916,185) (942,884)
(7.364,810) (1,004,045) (6,916,185) (942,884)
(113,847,224)  (15,520,792) 31,751,140 4,328,633
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737,465,804
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(188,742,722)
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100,538,713

11,407,280
(25,731,295)

(15,520,792)

2021

449,633,453

437,352,209
(181,270,998)

31,751,140

61,298,529

59,624,227
(24,712,675)

4,328,633

518,549,887

70,693,906

737,465,804

100,538,713
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2022 10 31

2022

(113,847,224)

(15,520,792)

2021

31,751,140

4,328,633

(8,500,001) (1,158,805)  (240,699,997)  (32,814,631)
116,199,999 15,841,546 - -
114,951,813 15,671,381 (28,737,628) (3,917,801)

3,159,445 430,727 - _
(18,767,267) (2,558,542) (17,237,496) (2,349,988)
(3,000,000) (408,990) - -

- - 54,806 7,472
(231,925) (31,618) 275,222 37,521
89,964,840 12,264,907 (254,593,953)  (34,708,794)
94,658,342 12,904,772 439,181,330 59,873,591

(189,274,238)

(25,803,757)

(180,176,669)

(24,563, 485)

(94,615,896)  (12,898,985) 259,004,661 35,310,105
(4,651,056) (634,078) 4,410,708 601,312
15,161,294 2,066,939 10,750,586 1,465,627
10,510,238 1,432,861 15,161,294 2,066,939
18,767,267 2,558,542 17,237,496 2,349,988
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2022 10 31

11 2013 12
2018

2018

2022 10 31
18.86 (2021 :28.35

16

90/236



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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2022 10 31

10 12 27
2012

IFRS

10

2021 11
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2022 10 31

2022 10 31 2021 10 31

hal]
]
-y

97/236



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 10 31

12
ECL
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2022 10 31

30

90

12 12
12
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2022 10 31

2013 12 50
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2022 10 31

32
12

12
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2022 10 31
2022 10 31 2021 10 31
2022 2022 2021 2021

2,690,371,827 507,334,762  2,520,145,516 714,378,751

2022 10 31 2021 10 31
FVTPL

2022
USD USD USD usD
- 10,510,238 - 10,510,238

FVTPL
507,334,762 - - 507,334,762
- 433,267 - 433,267
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
507,334,762 13,943,505 - 521,278,267
- - 2,109,908 2,109,908
- - 618,472 618,472
~ ~ 518,549,887 518,549,887

- - 521,278,267 521,278,267
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2022 10 31
2021
- 15,161,294 - 15,161,294
FVTPL
714,378,751 - - 714,378,751
- 11,417,580 - 11,417,580
714,378,751 26,578,874 - 740,957,625
- - 2,641,424 2,641,424
- - 850,397 850,397
- - 737,465,804 737,465,804

- - 740,957,625 740,957,625
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2022 10 31
2022
- 507,334,762 - 507,334,762
- 507,334,762 - 507,334,762
2021
- 714,378,751 - 714,378,751
- 714,378,751 - 714,378,751
2022 10 31 2021 10 31

10

106/236



10

2022 10 31

107/236

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



10

2022 10 31

108/236

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24.3%
54.6%
15.3%

2.0%



10

2022 10 31

2022 10 31

25,366,738
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2022 10 31
10.
2022 10 31 2021 10 31

2022
10,510,238 10,510,238
433,267 433,267
3,000,000 3,000,000
13,943,505 13,943,505
2,109,908 2,109,908
618,472 618,472
2,728,380 2,728,380

2021
15,161,294 15,161,294
11,417,580 11,417,580
26,578,874 26,578,874
2,641,424 2,641,424
850,397 850,397
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10.

11

12

2022 10 31

12

2022 2021
10,510,238 15,161,294
10,510,238 15,161,294

2022 2021

4,058,601 2,531,411
493,542 2,624,512

(1,233,364)

(1,097,322)

3,318,779 4,058,601
2,564,219 1,758,664
294,656 1,347,788
(623,772) (542,233)
2,235,103 2,564,219
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2022 10 31

2022 10 31 2021 10 31

2022 2021
278,615 432,736
79,600 123,705
47,796 74,223
27,734 41,365
4,691 17,111
24,908 25,116
155,128 136,141
618,472 850,397

0.7

0.2

0.12
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0.06

10

0.025

10,000

2022 10 31
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2022 10 31

0.55
2022 2021
(3,159, 445) -
(114,951,813) 28,737,628

(118,111, 258) 28,737,628
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2022 10 31

15.

13

13 2022
10 31 2021 10 31
13

16.

Q
Q@
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17.

2022 10

2022 10

2023

31

31
7,509,678
2,157,929

27

2022 10 31
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7,364,810

0.005

2021 6,916,185

29,699,124
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11

Statement of Financia Position

Asat 31 October 2022
2022 2021

Notes USD USD
Assets
Cash 11 10,510,238 15,161,294
Investment in Selected Fund (Cost: 2022: USD586,019,764,
2021: USD678,111.941) 8,9,10 507,334,762 714,378,751
Subscriptions receivable 433,267 11,417,580
Receivable from Selected Fund 3,000,000 -
Total Assets 521,278,267 740,957,625
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 2,109,908 2,641,424
Other payables 13 618,472 850,397
Total Liabilities 2,728,380 3,491,821
Elrﬁtt gssets atributable to the holder of redeemable participating 518,549,887 737,465,804
Representing:
Capital Growth Type Units
ll:lr:eitt :mets attributable to the holder of redeemable participating USD324.656,538  USD467,272,293
Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 3,318,779 4,058,601
Net asset value (“NAV”) per redeemable participating unit USD97.82 USD 115.13
Monthly Distribution Type Units
LI\jlneli :mets attributable to the holder of redeemable participating USD193:893349  USD270.193,511
Number of redeemable participating units outstanding 12 2,235,103 2,564,219
NAV per redeemable participating unit USD86.75 USD105.37

Approved on behalf of the Trustee on 27 February 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 October 2022

2022 2021

Notes USD USD
Net (loss)/income from financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
Net (loss)/gain on investments 14 (118,111,258) 28,737,628
Dividend income 18,767,267 17,237,496
Total revenue (99,343,991) 45,975,124
Distribution fees 1315 4,470,819 4,539,997
Investment Manager fees 13,15 1,277,307 1,297,200
Fee Agent fees 13,15 766,421 778,320
Administration fees 1315 432,193 439,003
Custody fees 13,15 28,176 30,351
Audit fees 25,217 25,182
Other fees and expenses 137,690 197,746
Total operating expenses 7,138,423 7,307,799
Operating (loss)/profit (106,482,414) 38,667,325
Finance Costs
Distributions to the holder of redeemable participating units 16 (7,364,810) (6,916,185)
Total Finance Costs (7,364,810) (6,916,185)
Change in net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable (113,847,224) 31,751,140

participating units

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister's Collection

A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Statement of Changesin Net Assets Attributable to the Holder of Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31 October 2022

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable participating
units at start of year

Issue of redeemable participating units

Repurchase of redeemable participating units

Change in net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable
participating units

Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable participating
units at end of year

2022 2021

usD USD
737,465,804 449,633,453
83,674,029 437,352,209
(188,742,722) (181,270,998)
(113,847,224) 31,751,140
518,549,887 737,465,804

The accompanying notes form anintegral part of these financial statements.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 October 2022

2022 2021
usD uUsD
Operating activities
Cha_nge in net assets aftri butable to the holder of redeemable (113,847,224 31,751,140
participating units
Purchase of investment in Selected Fund (8,500,001) (240,699,997)
Sale of investment in Selected Fund 116,199,999 -
Adjustment for items not involving cash
E/Iu?]\&ement inunrealised loss/(gain) on investment in Selected 114,951 813 (28,737,628)
Net realised loss on investment in Selected Fund 3,159,445 -
Distributions re-invested (18,767,267) (17,237,496)
Net change in non-cash operating balances
Increase in receivable from Selected Fund (3,000,000) -
Decrease in other assets - 54,806
(Decrease)/increase in other payables (231,925) 275,222
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 89,964,840 (254,593,953)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating units 94,658,342 439,181,330
Payments for repurchase of redeemable participating units (189,274,238) (180,176,669)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (94,615,896) 259,004,661
Net change in cash (4,651,056) 4,410,708
Cash at beginning of year 15,161,294 10,750,586
Cash at end of year 10,510,238 15,161,294
Supplementary information:
Distributions re-invested* 18,767,267 17,237,496

* Distribution amounts are not physically paid to unitholders but are instead applied in subscribing for additional unitsin

the same class of units.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) I11

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Meister's Collection (For Qualified Institutional Investors only) (the “Series Trust”) has been created and established
pursuant to the Master Trust Deed for Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 111 (the “Master Trust”) dated 2
December 2013 and a Supplemental Trust Deed dated 3 August 2018 (the “ Supplement Trust Deed” and, together with
the Master Trust Deed, the “ Trust Deed”).

The Series Trust commenced trading on 28 September 2018 issuing Capital Growth Type Units and Monthly
Distribution Type Units, respectively.

The investment objective of the Series Trust isto provide investors with the option of receiving either current income or
capital appreciation by indirectly investing under normal market conditions mainly in income-producing debt and equity
securities including, but not limited to, corporate bonds, convertible bonds, common stocks and preferred stocks. Itis
expected that the Series Trust will seek to achieve itsinvestment objective by investing substantially all of the assets of
the Series Trust into the USD Distribution Class Units of Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income Fund (the “ Selected Fund”).
The Selected Fund is a series trust of Global Multi Strategy, an umbrella unit trust established under the laws of the
Cayman Islands (the “Umbrella Trust”). At 31 October 2022, the Series Trust had an 18.86% (2021: 28.35%) holding in
the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust may aso hold USD cash and money market securities (including but not limited to commercial paper,
certificates of deposit and government hills).

Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company, Limited (the “Investment Manager”) shall have day-to-day
investment decision-making and ongoing monitoring responsibility over the portion of the Series Trust’s portfolio
comprising the Selected Fund and USD cash and money market securities (the “ Subadvised Portfolio”).

The Subadvised Portfolio may generate a certain amount of income each month. It isintended that the portion of such

income that is attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Unitswill be distributed to the holder of such class of Units
on each distribution date, as further described in Note 16.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek to provide ahigh level of income and attractive risk-adjusted
returns by investing in corporate securities across the capital structure based on the investment manager of the Selected
Fund, Nuveen Asset Management, LLC (the “ SF Investment Manager”) assessment of relative value and risk. The base
currency of the Selected Fund is USD.

In order to pursue itsinvestment objective, the SF Investment Manager employs a rigorous research-focused investment
process that seeks to identify undervalued companies with positive risk/reward characteristics in selecting investments
for the Selected Fund.

The SF Investment Manager's approach to investing is based upon a bottom-up, fundamental approach. The team
conducts independent research focused on understanding individual companies as businesses rather than viewing them
simply as stocks. Part of the methodology includes rigorous financial statement evaluation, focusing on balance sheet

and cash flow statement analysis above solely relying upon the income statement, a process they believe alows for atrue
understating of a company’s economic profitability, cash flow and return on capital.

The SF Investment Manager's investment process focuses on the attractiveness of a particular security within a company
's capital structure and seeks to invest in securities that it feels possess the appropriate balance between risk and reward
and that represent good value when compared to other similar securities. The SF Investment Manager may choose to sell
securities or reduce its exposure to a security, including through the use of the financial derivative instruments described
below, if it feelsthat a company no longer possesses favorable risk/reward characteristics, attractive valuations or
catalysts, if it identifies better alternatives within acompany’s capital structure, or if acompany suspends or is projected
to suspend its dividend or interest payments.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The SF Investment Manager will invest for the account of the Selected Fund in a diversified portfolio of investments
including, but not limited to, debt and equity securities of US or non-US companies. The debt securitiesin which the SF
Investment Manager invests, for the account of the Selected Fund, may invest include, but are not limited to, corporate
bonds, mortgage-backed securities, taxable municipal securities, and US Government and agency debt securities.
Preferred securities are securities issued by corporate issuers that generally pay fixed or adjustable rate distributions to
investors and have preference over common shares in the payment of distributions and the liquidation of acompany’s
assets, but are junior to most other forms of a company’s debt, including both senior and subordinated debt.

The SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may invest without limit in preferred securities and
debt securities that are rated lower than investment grade at the time of purchase or in unrated securities of comparable
quality. These securities may also be referred to as sub-investment grade securities and generally provide high incomein
an effort to compensate investors for their higher risk of default, which is the failure to make required interest or
principal payments. Accordingly, the NAV of the Selected Fund may have arelatively high level of volatility.

Thereis no limitation on the average maturity or average effective duration of the securities held by the Selected Fund.

Normally, the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest substantially al of the Selected
Fund's assets to meet itsinvestment objective. To the extent that the Selected Fund's assets are not fully invested in
accordance with itsinvestment objective, the SF Investment Manager's investment decisions may be made on the basis
of short-term market considerations in which case the SF Investment Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may
engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities. For temporary defensive purposes, including during periods of high
cash inflows and outflows, the SF Investment Manager may temporarily deviate from the investment policies and
restrictions of the Selected Fund. During such periods, the Selected Fund may not achieve its investment objective.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and interpretations issued by the | nternational
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASB.

Thefinancial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“USD”) and not the local currency of the Cayman
Islands. The units of the Series Trust are issued and redeemed in Japanese Yen (*JPY™) but the Series Trust’s operations
are primarily conducted in USD.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendmentsto IFRS 10, IFRS 12, and |AS 27) (2012) (the
“amendments’). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Trustee to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. Judgements made by the Trustee in the
application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Notes 9 and 10.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Thefinancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following material items:

Items Measurement basis
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Fair value
(“FVTPL"™)

Investment in Selected Fund isincluded in this category.

4. CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

5. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 November 2021 and earlier application is
permitted; however, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial

Statements.

Of those standards that are not yet effective, none is expected to have amaterial impact on the Series Trust’s financia
statements in the period of initia application.

6. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTSAND INTERPRETATIONS
New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year beginning 1 November 2021

A number of amendmentsto IFRS are effective for the current financial year, but they do not have a material effect on
the Series Trust's financial statements.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust and consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements are as follows:

Financia assets and financia liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Series Trust initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL on the trade date, which is the date
on which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Other financial assets and
financial liabilities are recognised on the date on which they are originated.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Classification of financial assets
On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
e itisheld within abusiness model whose objective isto hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
e itscontractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI™).

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Business model assessment
In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which afinancial asset is held, the Series Trust

considers al of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows
or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust’'s management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assetsin prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third partiesin transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales

for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assets.

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, subscriptions receivable and receivable from Selected Fund.
These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

Other business model: thisincludes investment in Selected Fund. These financial assets are managed and their
performanceis evaluated, on afair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined asthe fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
“Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), aswell as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing
or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series
Trust considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— leverage features,

— prepayment and extension features;

—terms that limit the Series Trust’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features); and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

For areconciliation of line itemsin the Statement of Financial Position to the categories of financia instruments, as
defined by IFRS 9, see Note 8.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Series Trust were to change its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets would be reclassified on the first
day of thefirst reporting period following the change in the business model.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assetsat FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income and
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Investment in Selected Fund isincluded in this category.

Thefair value of the investment in the Selected Fund is based on the unaudited NAV per unit obtained from the Selected
Fund's administrators, which has been assessed as the most representative measure of fair value as determined by the
Investment Manager. Realised and unrealised gains or losses on the investment in the Selected Fund are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assetsat amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash, subscriptions receivable and receivable from Selected Fund are included in this category.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financia liability is classified asat FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as

such on initia recognition. Financial liabilities at FV TPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities— Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and |osses (continued)

Other financia liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or |oss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

As at the years ended 31 October 2022 and 2021, there were no financia liabilitiesat FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost include repurchases payable and other payables.

(iii) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” isthe price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to
which the Series Trust has access at that date. The fair value of aliability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The Series Trust measures instruments quoted
in an active market at a mid-price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the exit price.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Series Trust uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all

of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Series Trust recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

135/236



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)

(iv) Amortised cost measurement

The “amortised cost” of afinancial asset or financia liability isthe amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for
financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

(v) Impairment
The Series Trust recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLS") on financia assets measured at
amortised cost.

The Series Trust measures |oss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL s, except for the following, which are
measured at 12-month ECLs:

e financial assetsthat are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
e other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset)
has not increased significantly sinceinitial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of afinancia asset has increased significantly sinceinitial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Series Trust considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. Thisincludes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Series
Trust's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Series Trust assumes that the credit risk on afinancial asset hasincreased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.
The Series Trust considers afinancial asset to bein default when:

e theborrower isunlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Series Trust in full, without recourse by the Series

Trust to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
e thefinancial asset is more than 90 days past due.

136/236



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

The Series Trust considers afinancial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECL s that result from all possible default events over the expected life of afinancia instrument.
12-month ECL s are the portion of ECL s that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument isless than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECL s is the maximum contractual period over which the Series Trust is exposed to credit
risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECL s are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfals (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Series Trust in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Series Trust expects to receive).

ECL s are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Series Trust assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is* credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that afinancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e dignificant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or
e itisprobablethat the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the Satement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of afinancial asset iswritten off when the Series Trust has no reasonable expectations of
recovering afinancial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

(vi) Derecognition

The Series Trust derecognises afinancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in atransaction in which substantialy all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Series Trust neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of afinancia asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets
that is created or retained by the Series Trust is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Series Trust may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Statement of Financial Position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised. Transfers of assets

with retention of al or substantially al of the risks and rewards include sale and repurchase transactions.

The Series Trust derecognises afinancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
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(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financia assets and financia liabilities (continued)
(vi) Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of afinancia liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position
when and only when there is alegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and thereis an intention to settle
on anet basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Thisis generally not the case with master netting
agreements and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the Statement of Financial Position. Asat 31
October 2022 and 2021, the Series Trust does not hold any financia assets or liabilities subject to master netting
arrangements.

Cash

Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited as Trustee have appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) as
its custodian (the “ Custodian™). The Custodian has, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH") astheir
sub-custodian (the “ Sub-Custodian”). Cash is ultimately held at BBH as the Series Trust’'s banker. Cash comprises of
cash held with maturities of 3 months or less with BBH.

Net (loss)/income from financial instruments at FVTPL
Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-dividend date basis.

Therealised gain from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction priceif it was purchased in the current
reporting period, and the consideration received on disposal. Realised gains or |osses on sale of investments are
calculated using the FIFO method. The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction priceif it was purchased in the current reporting
period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.
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(continued)

7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange transactions

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are trandated into USD amounts at the
date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities, issue and redemption of redeemable participating units and income
and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such
transactions.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or other Cayman
|slands taxes payable by the Master Trust. The Master Trust has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet
of the Cayman Idandsthat it will be exempt from such taxes for a period of fifty years from 2 December 2013 should
they be enacted. As aresult, no provision for taxes has been made in the financia statements. The Series Trust may be
subject to foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

Foreign currencies

Items which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”), which isUSD. Investments and other assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and
sales of investments, issue and repurchase of redeemable participating units and income and expense items denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into USD amounts on the respective dates of such transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at the exchange rates ruling at the year end date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are stated at fair value, are trandated into
USD, at the date the fair value was determined. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from trandlation, if any,
are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemabl e Participating Units

The Redeemable Participating Units sold by the Series Trust are puttable instruments and are classified as financial
liahilities as they do not meet the conditions for equity classification under the amendments to IAS 32, as there were
different classes of Units with different features in issue throughout the year (Note 12). The NAV per Unit is calculated
by dividing the total Net Assets of the Series Trust attributable to each Unit class by the number of Unitsinissuein each
respective class. All Units are issued and redeemed at this price.

Interest in another entity

Interest in another entity is defined for the purpose of IFRS 12 as contractual or non-contractual involvement that
exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance of the other entity. It can be evidenced by holding of
equity or debt instruments, but also liquidity support, credit enhancement and guarantees.

The Series Trust has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment fund in which it invests, but that it does not
consolidate, meets the definition of a structured entity because:

the voting rightsin the Selected Fund are not dominant rightsin deciding who controls them because the rights
relate to administrative tasks only;

the Selected Fund' s activities are restricted by its offering documents and applicable appendix; and

the Selected Fund has narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors.
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7. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in another entity (continued)

The table below describes the type of structured entity that the Series Trust does not consolidate but in which it holds an
interest:

Type of structured Nature and purpose Interest held by the Series Trust
entity
Investment Fund To provide ahigh level of income and attractive risk- Investments in units issued by

adjusted return by investing in corporate securitiesacross  the Selected Fund
the capital structure based on the Manager's assessment of
relative value and risk.

The table below sets out interests held by the Series Trust in unconsolidated structured entities. The maximum exposure
to lossisthe carrying amounts of the financial assets held at 31 October 2022 and 2021.

Total net Carrying Total net Carrying
assets amount at assets amount at
(unaudited) FVTPL (unaudited) FVTPL
2022 2022 2021 2021
uUsbD uUsbD usb usb
Nuveen NWQ Flexible Income
Fund 2,690,371,827 507,334,762 2,520,145,516 714,378,751

During the years ended 31 October 2022 and 2021, the Series Trust did not provide additional financial support to

unconsolidated structured entities and has no current obligation to or intention of providing other financial or other
support.
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(continued)

8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETSAND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financia
assets at Financial
Mandatorily amortised liabilities at
2022 a FVTPL cost amortised cost Tota
uUsD uUsbD uUsD uUsD
Cash - 10,510,238 - 10,510,238
Financial assetsat FVTPL 507,334,762 - - 507,334,762
Subscriptions receivable - 433,267 - 433,267
Receivable from Selected - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Fund
507,334,762 13,943,505 - 521,278,267
Repurchases payable - - 2,109,908 2,109,908
Other payables - - 618,472 618,472
Net assets attributable to the 518,549,887 518,549,887

holder of redeemable
participating units - -

- - 521,278,267 521,278,267
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(continued)

8. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial
assets at Financid
Mandatorily amortised ligbilities at
2021 aFVTPL cost amortised cost Total
usD usD usD usb
Cash - 15,161,294 - 15,161,294
Financial assetsat FVTPL 714,378,751 - - 714,378,751
Subscriptions receivable - 11,417,580 - 11,417,580
714,378,751 26,578,874 - 740,957,625
Repurchases payable - - 2,641,424 2,641,424
Other payables - - 850,397 850,397
Net assets attributable to the
holder of redeemable
participating units - - 737,465,804 737,465,804
- - 740,957,625 740,957,625
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value analysed between those whose fair value is based

on:

2022

Level 1: Quoted price (Unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument;

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted prices in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques for which al significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data; and

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments for
which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on
quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are
required to reflect differences between the instruments. The Series Trust did not hold any instrumentsin this
category.

Leved 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
usD usD uUsD usb

Financia assetsat FVTPL

Investment in Selected Fund - 507,334,762 - 507,334,762

2021

- 507,334,762 - 507,334,762

Financial assetsat FVTPL

Investment in Selected Fund - 714,378,751 - 714,378,751

- 714,378,751 - 714,378,751

There were no transfers across the three levels during the years ended 31 October 2022 and 2021.
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9. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at FVTPL

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

Cash, subscriptions receivable, receivable from Selected Fund, repurchases payable and other payables. These are short-
term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term
nature.

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

The main risks arising from the Series Trust’s financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial investments held. It represents the potential 1oss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market positionsin the face of price movements. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk.

In order to pursue the Series Trust’s investment objective, the Manager has committed to employing a rigorous research-
focused investment process that seeks to identify undervalued companies with positive risk/reward characteristics.

The Series Trust will invest, together with other investors, all, or substantially al of its assets through a “ master-feeder”
structure in the Selected Fund. A “master-feeder” structure, in particular the existence of multiple investment vehicles
investing in the same portfolio, presents certain unique risks to investors. Smaller investment vehicles investing in the
Selected Fund may be materially affected by the actions of larger investment vehicles investing in the Selected Fund. For
example, if alarger investment vehicle withdraws from the Selected Fund, the remaining funds may experience higher
pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower returns. Substantial withdrawals of capital by investors in the
Selected Fund, including the Series Trust and any other investors, over ashort time period could necessitate the
liquidation of investment positions at atime and in a manner which does not provide the most economic advantage to the
Selected Fund and which therefore could adversely affect the NAV  of the Selected Fund and hence the NAV  of the
Series Trust.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust in the Selected Fund. The Series
Trust will be required to comply with the terms of the Selected Fund's offering memoranda and constitutive documents,
which may place limits on subscriptions and repurchases, and additionally the liquidation of the Selected Fund would
lead to the compulsory repurchase of any Units held for the account of the Series Trust which may, in some cases, lead to
compulsory repurchases of Units. Accordingly, the performance of the Series Trust may not absolutely reflect the
performance of the Selected Fund.

The price of the units of the Selected Fund may fall as well as rise. There can be no assurance that the Selected Fund will
achieve itsinvestment objective or that an investor will recover the full amount invested in the Selected Fund.
Restrictions on investments in certain jurisdictions may limit the liquidity of the Selected Fund's investments. The
capital return and income of the Selected Fund is based on the capital appreciation and income on the investments it
holds, less expenses incurred. Therefore, the Selected Fund's return may be expected to fluctuate in response to changes
in such capital appreciation or income. An investment in the Selected Fund should be viewed by an investor as amedium
to long term investment.

The Selected Fund is subject to market risk. Market risk isthe risk that a particular Unit, afund, an industry, or securities
in general may fall in value. The value of investments in the Selected Fund will go up and down with the prices of
securitiesin which the Selected Fund invest. The prices of securities change in response to many factors, including the
historical and prospective earnings of the issuer, the value of its assets, management decisions, demand for an issuer's
products or services, production costs, general economic conditions, interest rates, currency exchange rates, investor
perceptions, geopolitical factors and market liquidity.

Normally, the Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, will invest substantially all of its assetsto meet its
investment objective. To the extent that the Selected Fund' s assets are not fully invested in accordance with the
investment objective, the Manager's investment decisions may be made on the basis of short-term market considerations
in which case the Manager, for the account of the Selected Fund, may engage in frequent trading of portfolio securities.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

The following table approximates the concentration of the investment assets, excluding derivatives, held by the

Selected Fund:
% of Net Assets of the

Selected Fund
Equities/Preferred securities 24.3%
Corporate bonds 54.6%
Variable rate bonds 15.3%
Structured notes 2.0%

For the Selected Fund, the investments are primarily concentrated in the United States of America in diverse
industries.

Price Risk

Pricerisk istherisk that value of the related instruments will fluctuate as aresult of changes in the market prices (other
than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment,
or itsissuer. The Series Trust is susceptible to price risk that occurs at the Selected Fund, which may include substantial
risks as aresult of trading by the Selected Fund of equity securities, derivative instruments, options and futures,
including securities denominated in different currencies while executing their investment strategy. As the Selected Fund
sinvestments in securities, futures contracts and swap are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly affect the Net Assets attributable to
the Series Trust.

As at 31 October 2022, if the price of the Investment in Selected Fund had increased by 5% with al other variables held
constant, there would have been an increase in Net Assets of USD25,366,738 (2021: USD35,718,938). A decrease by 5%
with al other variables held constant, would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets to the figure shown
above.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Currency Risk

Currency risk isthe risk that as certain assets of the Series Trust may be invested in securities and other investments
denominated in foreign currencies, the value of such assets may be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations
in currency rates. Although the Series Trust’s investments are USD denominated, the Series Trust indirectly bears
currency risk on the investment held in the Selected Fund. The Investment Manager will monitor the portfolio of the
Selected Fund.

The class of units held by the Series Trust in the Selected Fund is USD denominated. This presents certain risks relating
to currency conversion if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit
(including JPY) (the “Investor's Currency”) other than USD. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly
change (including changes due to devaluation of USD or revaluation of the Investor's Currency) and the risk that
authorities with jurisdiction over USD or the Investor's Currency, asthe case may be, may impose or modify exchange
controls. Anincrease in the value of the Investor's Currency against USD would decrease (a) the Investor's Currency
equivalent value of the NAV of the Selected Fund and NAV of the Selected Fund per unit and (b) the Investor's
Currency equivalent value of the distributions payable (if any).

Some of the assets of the Selected Fund may be invested in other currencies and any income received by the Selected
Fund from these investments will be received in those currencies, some of which may fal in value against the functiona
currency of the Selected Fund. In addition, the Selected Fund may invest directly in currency deposits or forward
contracts or equivalent derivatives, in some cases for hedging purposes.

All the financial assets of the Series Trust, are denominated in USD with the effect that the Statement of Financial

Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income will not be significantly affected by currency movements and, asa
result, a sensitivity analysis has not been performed.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust might suffer due to adverse movements in relevant

interest rates. Except for cash, which is subject to afloating interest rate and matures in less than 3 months, the majority
of the Series Trust's other financial assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing. As aresult, the Series Trust is
subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates. However, the Series Trust is exposed to higher levels of interest rate risk through its investment in the Selected
Fund.

Interest rate risk at the Selected Fund level is the risk that the value of the Selected Fund's portfolio may decline during
periods of rising interest rates. When interest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually
subject to greater change than the values of shorter-duration debt securities. The Selected Fund may be subject to a
greater risk of rising interest rates than would have been the case in past periods due to the recent environment of near
historically low rates, including negative interest rates, and the effect of potential government fiscal policy initiatives and
resulting market reaction to those initiatives. Due to the Selected Fund' s investment strategy, assets held by the Selected
Fund would see fluctuation based on changes to the market interest rates.

Asat 31 October 2022 and 2021, all the Series Trust's assets except for cash and liabilities were non-interest bearing.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk istherisk that the Series Trust may not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable
price. The Series Trust is exposed to daily cash repurchases of Redeemable Participating Units, which can be redeemed
at the holder’s option based on the Series Trust's NAV per Redeemable Participating Unit at the time of the repurchase.
There are no repurchase restrictions on units of the Series Trust, other than in the limited circumstances specified in the
documentation. The Manager may borrow monies, for the account of the Series Trust, provided that it will not result in
an aggregate outstanding amount of borrowing in excess of 10% of the NAV.

Redeemable Participating Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of the unitholder of the Series Trust as at
each business day and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine (the “Repurchase
Day”).

Per the policies of the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is able to redeem their investment in the Selected Fund on any
Repurchase Day (as defined above). As the repurchase policies of both the Series Trust and Selected Fund are aligned,
thereis minimal impact on the Series Trust’s liquidity risk. The Selected Fund's securities are considered by the SF
Investment Manager to be readily liquid. The Selected Fund's liquidity risk is managed on a daily basis by the SF
Investment Manager in accordance with policies and proceduresin place.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continued)

The tables below analyses the Series Trust’s financial assets and liabilities by contractual maturity as at 31 October 2022

and 2021.:

Lessthan

1 month Total
2022 uUsb usb
Assets
Cash 10,510,238 10,510,238
Subscriptions receivable 433,267 433,267
Receivable from Selected Fund 3,000,000 3,000,000
Tota Financid Assets 13,943,505 13,943,505
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 2,109,908 2,109,908
Other payables 618,472 618,472
Tota Financia Liabilities 2,728,380 2,728,380
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Lessthan

1 month Tota
2021 usD UsSD
Assets
Cash 15,161,294 15,161,294
Subscriptions receivable 11,417,580 11,417,580
Tota Financia Assets 26,578,874 26,578,874
Liabilities
Repurchases payable 2,641,424 2,641,424
Other payables 850,397 850,397
Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemabl e participating
units

737,465,804 737,465,804

Tota Financid Liabilities 740,957,625 740,957,625
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Credit Risk
Credit risk isthe risk that a counterparty to afinancia instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that
it has entered into with the Series Trust. The Series Trust is exposed to the credit risk of the Selected Fund.

Both the cash and securities are ultimately held at the Sub-Custodian, with cash being held at the Sub-Custodian as
banker. All of the cash of the Series Trust are held by the Sub-Custodian at year end. The Sub-Custodian has a S& P
Global credit rating of A+ (2021: A+). The Custodian (which is responsible for both the Series Trust and Selected Fund)
has a S& P Global credit rating of A (2021: A). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Series
Trust's rights with respect to its investments in debt securities held by the bank to be delayed or limited.

The Portfolio Managers of the SF Investment Manager continuously monitor the credit worthiness/risk of the Selected
Fund's investments.

The assets held for the account of the Selected Fund are subject to risks resulting from changes in the creditworthiness of
the underlying investments of the Selected Fund or the issuer of such investments. This could lead to greater volatility in
the prices of the security and in units of the Selected Fund. For example, an issuer of a bond might not be able to meet its
obligation to make interest and principal payments, or bond investors as a whole may downgrade their view of the issuer
resulting in a deterioration of the price of the issuer's debt. In addition, credit opinions from credit rating agencies may
weigh on the credit spreads of the investments made for the account of the Selected Fund.

Other Risks

On 24 February 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia' s invasion of Ukraine carries significant
risks for aworld economy that has yet to fully recover from the impacts of the global COVID-19 pandemic. The impact
on the Series Trust of the consequential geo-political instability, financial market volatility, inflation and imposition of
sanctions on Russia are not possible to forecast at thistime.
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (continued)
Amounts arising from ECL
Impairment on cash, interest, dividends and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Series Trust considers that these exposures have low credit risk based
on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

11. CASH
2022 2021
uUsD usD
Cash 10,510,238 15,161,294
10,510,238 15,161,294

12. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS

The Series Trust has two classes of units: Capital Growth Type Units and Monthly Distribution Type Units.

2022 2021
Capital Growth Type Units
Number of units outstanding as at start of year 4,058,601 2,531,411
Number of units sold 493,542 2,624,512
Number of units redeemed (1,233,364) (1,097,322)
Number of units outstanding as at end of year 3,318,779 4,058,601
Monthly Distribution Type Units
Number of units outstanding as at start of year 2,564,219 1,758,664
Number of units sold 294,656 1,347,788
Number of units redeemed (623,772) (542,233)

Number of units outstanding as a end of year 2,235,103 2,564,219
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12. NET ASSETSATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDER OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS
(continued)

From and including theinitial closing day, units of each class of units will be available for subscription by investors at a
price equal to the NAV per Unit of the applicable class of units on each dealing day, subject to the minimum
subscription. The NAV per Unit for each class of Unitswill be calculated as at the relevant dealing day (or if that dealing
day is not also avaluation day the immediately preceding valuation day). The minimum subscription amount is 1 unit
and thereafter subscriptions may be made in 1 unit increments. The aggregate subscription amounts will be rounded
naturally to the nearest two decimal places with 0.005 being rounded up. There will be no subscription fee payable.

Investors may subscribe for units of aclass of units during the initial offer period by sending a completed application
form to the Administrator by no later than 5.00 p.m. (Tokyo time) on the last day of theinitial offer period or by such
other times and/or days as the Manager may in its sole discretion determine.

The subscription monies must be remitted in full by telegraphic transfer from an account in the name of the applicant for
the account of the Series Trust for a cash settlement date on or before the date falling one business day after theinitial
closing day. Payment must be made in USD. No third party payments will be accepted. Incomplete application forms
may, in the discretion of the Manager, be held over to the first dealing day following receipt of a completed application
form and units will then be issued at the relevant NAV per Unit on such dealing day.

Investors may make a repurchase request to the Administrator on each dealing day which is aso aday on which no
Series Trust disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determinein
respect of the Series Trust in respect of Units of aclass of Units for which subscription proceeds have been received by
the Administrator. The repurchase notice once served isirrevocable, unless the Manager, after consultation with the
Trustee, determines otherwise. The repurchase price per unit of aclass of unitswill be calculated as the NAV per unit of
such class of units as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchase Day is not also avaluation day then on the
immediately preceding valuation day). The Manager may, in its sole discretion, hold over any repurchase notice received
after the repurchase notice deadline until the next following Repurchase Day and repurchase the relevant units at the
relevant repurchase price applicable to such class of units on that Repurchase Day.
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Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

13. FEESAND EXPENSES

The Series Trust's fees payable as at 31 October 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021

usD usb
Distribution fees 278,615 432,736
Investment Manager fees 79,600 123,705
Fee Agent fees 47,796 74,223
Administration fees 27,734 41,365
Custody fees 4,691 17,111
Audit fees 24,908 25,116
Other fees and expenses 155,128 136,141

618,472 850,397

Distribution Fees
The Distributor receives out of the Series Trust, afee on amonthly basis at the rate of 0.7% per annum of the NAV,
calculated on each valuation day.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, afee payable quarterly in arrears at the rate of
0.2% per annum of the NAV.

Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, afee payable quarterly in arrears at the rate of 0.12% per
annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Fee Agent isresponsible for payment of the Trustee and Manager fees. The Fee Agent will also cover al costs and
expenses pertaining to the Trustee and Manager fees including sundry expenses.

The Trustee receives a fixed annual fee of USD10,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of the Fee Agent

Fees. The Trustee is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the Fee Agent Feesfor all out-of-pocket expenses properly
incurred by it in the performance of its duties.

157/236



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Meister's Collection
A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

13. FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)
Fee Agent Fees(continued)

The Manager receives out of the Fee Agent Fees a management fee of USD5,000 per annum payable monthly in arrears.

Administration Fees

The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a monthly fee of 0.07% per annum of the NAV on the
first USD500 million, 0.06% per annum of the NAV on the next USD500 million and 0.05% per annum of the NAV
after USD1,000 million.

All of the Administrator’'s fees are subject to additions in relation to value added tax (if any). In addition, the Trustee
pays, out of the assets of the Series Trust, the Administrator' s reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for photocopying, fax,
telephone, printing, courier, postage and other communications charges, as well as for any banking costs and the fees or
charges of any government or official department, body or organisation, and any other similar expenses, costs, fees or
charges paid by the Administrator on behalf of the Series Trust in connection with the performance of its services for the
Series Trust.

Custody Fees
The Custodian receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, afee payable monthly in arrears at the rate of 0.025% per
annum of the NAV, calculated on each valuation day.

The Custodian also receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, any other fees agreed between the relevant partiesand is
reimbursed out of the assets of the Series Trust for all out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance
of itsduties.

Fees of the Selected Fund

Asthe Series Trust intends to invest substantially all of its assets in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust will indirectly
bear the costs and fees applicable to the Selected Fund. These fees will reduce the NAV  attributable to holders of
redeemabl e participating units of the Selected Fund, which will affect the value of the Investment in Selected Fund
presented in the Statement of Financial Position of the Series Trust. The total fees of the Selected Fund are
approximately 0.55% of the assets under management of the Selected Fund per annum subject to change of certain fixed
fees. More details regarding the breakdown of specific fees paid within the Selected Fund are available in the Offering
Documents of the Series Trust.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022

(continued)

14. NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENTS

2022 2021
usD usD
Net (loss)/gain on investments consists of the following
Realised loss on financial assetsat FVTPL (3,159,445) -
Movement in unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assetsat FVTPL (114,951,813) 28,737,628
Net (loss)/gain on investments (118,111,258) 28,737,628

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Manager, Investment Manager, Fee Agent,
Administrator, Custodian and Distributor are deemed to be related parties of the Series Trust. The Trustee is arelated
party by virtue of its power to create the Trust under the Deed of Establishment. The Manager is arelated party by virtue
of its power to issue units under the Deed of Establishment and by virtue of common ownership by the ultimate parent
company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Investment Manager is arelated parties by virtue of their power to make
investment decisions. The Fee Agent isarelated party by virtue of its ability to exercise significant influence as it
provides calculation agency services to the Series Trust. The Fee Agent information is detailed in Note 13. The
Distributor, Administrator and Custodian are related parties by virtue of their affiliation with the Investment Manager.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business. Fees incurred with
related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and discussed in Note 13.
Amounts charged by and payable to related parties as at 31 October 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in Note 13.
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A Series Trust of Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) 1

Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

16. DISTRIBUTIONS

The Series Trust may generate a certain amount of income each month. The current distribution policy of the Series
Trustis:

(i inrespect of the Capital Growth Type Units, to pay no distribution; and

(it inrespect of the Monthly Distribution Type Units, pay to the holder of such class of Units a monthly distribution
(a“Monthly Distribution™) in respect of each distribution date paid out of the investment principal (arealisation
of unitsin the Selected Fund) which may also be in excess of any capital gain and attributable to the Monthly
Distribution Type Unitsin respect of the corresponding distribution period.

The amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each distribution date shall be determined by the Manager in its sole
discretion taking into account (1) realised and unrealised capital gains from the Selected Fund, and (2) miscellaneous
costs, among other factors, per Unit each month.

Furthermore, it is also important for investors to note that the Manager may, in circumstances where it deems
appropriate, elect that a Monthly Distribution is not payable in respect of Monthly Distribution Type Units for arelevant
month, notwithstanding its option to use the investment principal attributable to the Monthly Distribution Type Units.
Circumstances where the Manager may make such an election, include but are not limited to where it determinesin its
sole discretion that application of the Series Trust’s investment objectives and policies have generated a negative
performance over the previous month or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems it appropriate to
make such an election.

Any Monthly Distribution declared will be paid (net of any taxes payable in respect of such distribution) on the
corresponding distribution date. Distributions will be made to the person in whose name Monthly Distribution Type
Units are registered on the register of Unitholders on the relevant distribution record day. Such distributions will be

rounded naturally to two decimal places with 0.005 being rounded up.

Distributions paid during the year ended 31 October 2022 amounted to USD7,364,810 (2021: USD6,916,185).
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Notesto the Financial Statements
31 October 2022
(continued)

17. POST STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 October 2022, there were redemptions of USD29,699,124 from the Series Trust and there were
subscriptions of USD7,509,678 into the Series Trust. Also through to 27 February 2023, the Series Trust paid
Distributions of USD2,157,929.

As of 27 February 2023, there were no other events subsequent to the year end, which require disclosure in the financial
Statements.
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2021 12 31

2021 2020
11 49,591,482 6,760,807 8,273,695 1,127,953
12 58,583 7,987 26,831 3,658
9,10 2,529,547,436 344,853,202 1,858,958,627 253,431,830
24,902,740 3,394,991 19,569,664 2,667,932
13 29,028,652 3,957,476 19,354,115 2,638,546
2,633,128,893 358,974,462 1,906,182,932 259,869,919
9,10 1,639,606 223,527 9,913 1,351
43,420 5,919 48,429 6,602
271,843 37,060 3,849,628 524,820
16 1,686,841 229,967 1,132,966 154,457
3,641,710 496,474 5,040,936 687,231
14,18 2,629,487,183 358,477,988 1,901,141,996 259,182,688

2022 27
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

23,077,088 3,146,099 17,849,978 2,433,488
3,844 524 82,859 11,296
78,737,779 10,734,321 54,032,463 7,366,246
(67,187) (9,160) (87,520) (11,932)
15 9,140,420 1,246,113 37,058,734 5,052,217
110,891,944 15,117,899 108,936,514 14,851,315
16,17 223,006 30,402 147,122 20,057
16,17 10,947,209 1,492,433 7,234,873 986,330
16,17 67,985 9,268 67,481 9,200
16,17 892,015 121,608 588,487 80,228
16,17 614,936 83,834 467,896 63,788
16,17 155,843 21,246 110,100 15,010
16,17 24,870 3,391 19,750 2,693
29,802 4,063 29,753 4,056
1 0 98 13
99,324 13,541 16,159 2,203
13,054,991 1,779,787 8,681,719 1,183,579
97,836,953 13,338,112 100,254,795 13,667,736
19 (100,754,791)  (13,735,901)  (71,698,594)  (9,774,669)
(100,754,791)  (13,735,901) (71,698,594)  (9,774,669)
(2,917,838) (397,789) 28,556,201 3,893,067
(9,018,215)  (1,229,453)  (5,671,337) (773,173)
(11,936,053) (1,627,242) 22,884,864 3,119,894
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2021 12 31

2021 2020

1,901,141,996 259,182,688 1,092,610,191 148,955,547

805,639,018 109,832,767 807,096,910 110,031,522
(65,286,629)  (8,900,526)  (21,426,038)  (2,921,012)
16 (71,149) (9,700) (23,931) (3,263)

(11,936,053)  (1,627,242) 22,884,864 3,119,894

2,629,487,183 358,477,988 1,901,141,996 259,182,688
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(9,674,537)  (1,318,930)  (7,158,609) (975,933)
1,629,693 222,176 (91,043) (12,412)
(3,577,785) (487,759)  (2.,869,228) (391,162)
553,875 75,510 491,333 66,983
(592,870,577)  (80,826,046) (719,211,962)  (98,050,167)
783,021,819 106,749,365 775,622,492 105,740,614
(5,333,076) (727,058) 6,115,866 833,776
(65,286,629)  (8,900,526)  (21,426,038)  (2,921,012)
(5,009) (683) (43,588) (5,942)
(71,149) (9,700) (23,931) (3,263)
* (78,137,592)  (10,652,498)  (40,224,176)  (5,483,762)
634,188,364 86,458,900 720,020,625 98,160,412
41,317,787 5,632,854 808,663 110,245
8,273,695 1,127,953 7,465,032 1,017,708
49,591,482 6,760,807 8,273,695 1,127,953
16,963,093 2,312,578 13,410,190 1,828,211
81,465,616 11,106,207 52,795,753 7,197,645
3,844 524 82,859 11,296
@ © (98) 13
*2021 12 31 22,617,199 2020 31,474,418

19

(670,588,809)

(91,421,372)

(804,141,042)

2021 12 31
2021 2020
97,836,953 13,338,112 100,254,795 13,667,736
(9,018,215)  (1,229,453)  (5,671,337) (773,173)
(31,752) (4,329) (26,831) (3,658)

(109,628,548)
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2023

512,990,663 69,936,017,087
2,126,477 289,902,609
510,864,186 69,646,114,477

3,172,090

2,136,988
101.24 13,802
88.78 12,103
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2023 735,000 10,020
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2023

1,665,427,763

8,790,329

13 78,387,892

79,264,682,270

631,497,717

25 156,826,495,312
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2020 2020 12 31 2021
2021 12 31
22
38 59 131

23 103

2023 28
136.33
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2021 2020

usD usD
1,541 210 16,025 2,185
1,541 210 16,025 2,185
1,541 210 16,025 2,185
210,000 28,629 220,000 29,993

4 1

211,545 28,840 236,025 32,177
(111,758) (15,236)  (111,476) (15,198)
99,787 13,604 124,549 16,980
99,787 13,604 124,549 16,980
99,787 13,604 124,549 16,980
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2021 12 31

2021 2020

usD usD
9 1,759,688 239,898 1,643,796 224,099
10 210,863 28,747 220,970 30,125
1,970,551 268,645 1,864,766 254,224
10 223,931 30,529 217,933 29,711
223,931 30,529 217,933 29,711
11 735,000 100,203 735,000 100,203
1,011,620 137,914 911,833 124,310
1,746,620 238,117 1,646,833 224,513

1,970,551 268,645 1,864,766 254,224
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2021 12 31
uSsD usD uSsD
2021
735,000 100,203 911,833 124,310 1,646,833 224,513
99,787 13,604 99,787 13,604
12 31 735,000 100,203 1,011,620 137,914 1,746,620 238,117
2020

735,000 100,203 787,284 107,330 1,522,284 207,533
124,549 16,980 124,549 16,980
12 31 735,000 100,203 911,833 124,310 1,646,833 224,513
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2021 2020

usD UsD
99,787 13,604 124,549 16,980
(1,541) (210) (16,025) (2,185)
98,246 13,394 108,524 14,795
10,107 1,378 (3,543) (483)
10,107 1,378 (3,543) (483)
5,998 818 86,604 11,807
5,998 818 86,604 11,807
1,541 210 16,025 2,185
115,892 15,800 207,610 28,303
115,892 15,800 207,610 28,303
1,643,796 224,099 1,436,186 195,795
1,759,688 239,898 1,643,796 224,099
1,759,688 239,898 1,643,796 224,099
1,759,688 239,898 1,643,796 224,099
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KYl 1104
309 c/oMaples Corporate Services Limited,
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

IFRS
IFRS I1AS
1ASB

IFRS

usb
usD usD
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IFRS

ECL ECL
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2021
IFRS 16 CovID 19
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
1ASB IFRS
15

2021 2020

1,541 16,025
1,541 16,025
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2021 2020
210,000 220,000
210,000 220,000

2021 2020

1 (1,182)
(5,272) (3,201)
(106,485) (107,093)

(111,758) (111,476)

2039 10 10
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5,000 2020 5,000 2021 12 31

REITa

CS

us

us

NB  MYAM
UK

AMP

AMP REIT
J REIT

CAT
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HOLT
PIMCO
J REIT
AHL
SBI PICTET
us
17 20

2021

2021 2020
1,759,688 1,643,796
1,759,688 1,643,796

2021 2020

210,863 220,970
210,863 220,970

182/236



10

11

12

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020

223,931 217,933

223,931 217,933
2021 2020

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2020 12 31
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863
210,863 210,863 220,863 220,863
223,931 223,931 217,933 217,933
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
958,931 958,931 952,933 952,933
2021 2020
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000
210,000 210,000 220,000 220,000

2021 2020

106,485 107,093

106,485 107,093

2021

12 31
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[ trcl? Sainta Manageeaf (Cawman) Lintes
ek ssxamenis for Yo paar anood 37 Do dus 2027

Statement of Income for the Year Ended 31 Dacamber 2021

usD Ft"'f;;' 2021 2020

L R e I | -

" of vehieh intanest income from awbuenls &t _
amorased onsf 1547 ‘Iﬁ,:r‘g‘?_

MWet interest income 4 1,541 16,025

sErmsSsssmssEmaEa e T L L T T e L L L T

Sander foe |"|..arne E 210,600 220,000

“Hifnar reveri
MNal revenues 211,545 236,025

T L L R L L LR L T LT e T

“Heneml, acm T ristratiee and other pperaling expensas & i ‘?58} = 'lf“ITTI'.'A"FEi
Dperating profit before allowance and taxation 88,787 124,548

Profit before tax 84,787 124,548

“ncome fax ERparEe ) il
Profit after tax 93,787 124,543

Ihe acoor panying 1otes fom an irfeg-al part of these financia s-atements.
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Urpef] Suisa Manapomend (Capmen) Linifeg
Fir eIl wmebinons e o o o wnier! 87 Dby 2007

Statement of Financial Posilion as at 31 December 2021

USD s 2021 2020
i A I ——
Casharcdie fromoanes TG g 6eE T E45 06

‘Ofner assets Q0 210,863 BO0,570

Total assets 1,970,551 1,864,768

Linbilities

ST S A S e e
Total llabllides 223,931 217,933

Shareholders’ equity

At e TER000 735,600
Rataired aa’mn_ﬁ 1,011,620 511,633
Total shareholders’ equity 1,748,820 1,646,833
Total liabilifes and shareholders' equity 1.970.551 1,864,766

Aporoved and author sed for issus by the beard of cirecions on

Liirzctor

L

Nicolas Papoveine
Director .
cradit Sulsse Monogement fCayman) Limited

The accomperying notes form an imtegral part of thess firardial lalemnen ..
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o Bumgy Manasgamen! (U Lefad
Thanoie 2 atsmants for the poar scled 31 Dacen ber 2027

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Share capizl Rakainesd
usD carrings Total
2“2‘ S IR NI RN RS R RS PR FAS Se S BBl E T AT AR TR R s eSS A S SR EES
‘Balanceatiepuary 735000 911,833 1646833
Predit “or the yoar - o8,TET 22,787
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1.011,620 1,746,620

2020

Balsnce st Tianuary U 795000 | 787284 1522284

Prclil “or the year — 124545 94540
Balance al 31 Dacember 735,000 911,833 1,646,833

The accompanying Jotes form an imtegral part o~ these finencial staterents,
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Srefi Suera banageraont Capmant Lifog
Feupna” silerraniy o fhe pear andeg 51 Cocenber 2021

Statemant of Cash Flows Tor the Year Ended 21 December 2021

Han ﬁmﬂ‘-'ﬂr:f;' 2021 2020
Cash flows from operaling aclivibes

Profit bafore tax for the periad 84,787 124 549

Acjustments to reconcile net profil lo net cash

generated from/(used in) operaling activities

Non-cash items included in net profil belore tax

and other adjustments:

e i G i s SHEIY o LTSI
Cash gencroted from operating activiies before

changes In operating assets and liabilities 99.246 108,524

Net deorease/(norease) inoperating assets:
Oter assais 10,1C7 (=.h43)
Met decrease/lincrease) in operating assets 10,107 {3.543)
Otner fabilites 5,958 5 804

JNetincroame In operefing HaBIRHES: ootz 2998 86,604
Intarest irgome receivad 4 1,541 "E006

MNeat cash generated from operating activity 115,892 207,810

Met increase In cash and cash aguivalents 115,892 207,610

Cagh ard zash equikalants of the beginnlng of ynar | 63, 706 1,456, 186

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,759,688 1,643,796

Cash ard due from karks 9 1,759,588 1,643,796

Gash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,758,688 1,643,796

T scoompanying nodes forn an irlegral parl of these nanc’al statemanis.
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MNotes ta the financial statements

1.  Principal activities

Crack Susss Menagemenl (Caymad) Lirrited (the “Compary™) is incomporased Inne Cayman Islands
with limited fabily. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trus=s and the administraion
and ransgameni of assets in tuss. Toe Company's registe-ed office Is /o Weples Corporara
Sendces | Imited, P.O. Sex 309, Jylsrd House, Grand Cayman IKY1-170<, Cayman |slands

2. Significant Accounting Pelicies
(a) Statement of campliance

Thasa finzreial stotements have bews pepared in accodance with all appleable Imemational
Flhasclel Roporting Stwcards (YFR3s™, which collestive fern inchades all soplicable indridual
Incernatioral  Firanclal Repwrlng Standacds, Intematisnal Accousting Standards (MASs") and
Incerpretations issed by Intemadona Accounting Standards Board (TASET. A summary of te
sigrificant acopunting policies adopted by the Comoany is sat ot below,

{bY  Basis of preparation of the financial stataments
The mezsLrement besis used in tae prepaiaion of Lie firencidl statements & e historical cost basls,

Ihe prepa-ation of “nanszl stalements in confarmity with IFRSs requires ranagement to make
Jucgzments, eslinales and assurptions that affact she application of polcies and reported amounts
of assels, fabililes, icanes and expanses. The estimates and assodated azeumptions are based on
histosicn! weparience and varous other factos hat are believed fo be -emsoneble andsr the
circumstances, the results of which fom the bas's of making the judgemets abouwt camryig va ues of
assele and labiities that are not readiy apparer: from oter sourzes. Actual resalts may ciffer from
these estimles,

The estimates and underylog assomptions zre raviewed on an pageing buss.  Resisions lo
ascouting estimates are recognised In the pericd In which the estimate s revised i tha -avision
affects only that perisd, or In 192 pericd of tha renision ane fudiie pericds T b revis en affects bath
camart and futuse pences,

(z)  Forcign currency

e Compamy's funclional ard presenlation cumency s Unitec States Dolarz PUSD). Forelgn
currercy transactions durrg the year are translatec ma USD at tee forsign exchenge rates wlirg at
the Bansaclion dales, Monetary assets and haolities denominated in forelgn curencles are branslabed
ks UED at lhe loralgr. ewchange retes ruling at the end of the repoing perod. Exchange gains and
inzeee ara recognised ir the profit or loss.

Mor-monstary 2ssets and Banilties that ere measurnd in forms of historlcal cost n 2 fere g currency
are ransizted into USD uzing the forsign axchange matos uling at the transaction dabes. Moo
monetary assets anc labilities dercringted in forclgn currences <hat are stalec =t fair value are
transiated usirg the foreign exchange rates ruing atihe dates tme fair valie vais coramine]. Faeign
currency d fferences ansing on retranslation are reccgnsed in prafit or kes,
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2. Significant Accounting Pollcles (continued)
i}  Cash and esh equivalents

Cash and due fron basks comprise cach al bank aid a1 hend with banles, and shar toem, Highly
HqLid investrants that ane readily corvrlibhe irto <nown amcuncs of cash ard which zre subjest tooan
ngignificant sk of changas in valua, feving been within thres movthe of maturty at zequisition,

()  Other assots

Other assefs are inffaly recogaized al “ar walre and theresSer staced &t amorlised cost less
Expeecled Credil Loss CECLY) (rovzr o Nate Dol except whers {he recabables are interest-free
loane made o related arties without cny fieed repaymert terms ar the affedt of diszaunting wewds be
immalerial, In such cases, fhe receivablas zre stated &t cost less impa ment for bad and doubtiul
dzbls,

ify Provisions and contingent liabilities

Frovisions are recagnized fer Fasiities of urceran liming or arount when the Coroany has 2 legal
o- consfruciive soligatizn arlsing as a ~ssult of 2 past evernt, i is probakle that an gusflow of economic
harefits will be requirad te settle the ol gzdon and a ralable 2st mats cash be nade. Where the tire
walue of money is mete-lal, provisions zre staled at ihe preser va ue of the expandture axpactsd to
settle the obligedon.

Wherz it &5 not probatie sl an sutflow of seonomic benefits wil be raquired, or 172 amount cannet
be ast mated reliably, the obligation is dizcksed as a contingent lablliy, wyeze the probabilty of
wutflow of economic senefits s mmete. Poazlble obl cavons, whosa axistence will anly be confirmed
by the oocarrence er nen oceurrence of are or More fulure evants are also discosed as contingent
iahi ties unless the probability of cutf ow o° aconamic benefits 13 remote.

gy Impairment

The camying ameun: o <he Company's assets is reviewed at the erd of each repading period to
datenming whetaer there | any cbjechve evidenze of mpairment If any sush objective sviderce
exists, the asset's recoverable amount is sstimabed & the end of =ach reporling pensd. Ar
impzirznt bess 15 recognised wheneve the camying amourt of an aseet axcseds its recoverabe
amaunt. Impairment osses are recegaised in tha proff or lees.

Unde- IFRS 9, the mpeirment requirements apely prinarily to financial assets neasured at ame isec
tozi. The mpalmert requivements are based or 2 forward-looking expected credt boss mods! by
incormaovating reasonabls and supporase farecasts of future economic conditions avallable at fre
raporting dece, This requires considerable udcement ove- how chances in economic factors affect
ECLs, which s deta mined cn a probablity-weighled bass.

thy Revenue recognition

Provided that it is arobable dhat the econcm ¢ benafits will figw to the Company and the revaue ard
costs. If app beable, zan be neasurec aliably, sendce fee income 13 recosn sed |1 prefh or loss wher
11e Invezmer management serdcz is provided.

i Expenses

Al prpenses are recognised in profit and less on 27 acorual ok,
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related partios

Fer the puraasas of thezn financia. staterments, 2 parly s considerec 12 be relzted te <he Company if:
(& A person, o & close memoer of bl pe-sot’s family, is related to the Company if that pe-son:
M  hes covirol o jo'rt zontral oves e Comparry;
(i) hes siorificant ‘milusncs cax the Corpany; o
(i) is a remoer & the key maragemenl perscnnel of the Comoany or the Company's
peron.

(L} Avenlity is related to fhe Comaany T any of tha fellzwing eanditions applies:

(i  The antity anc fre Company are mambers of the same group {(which means “ha: ezch
parert, subsiciary and fel ow subsidiary Is related to the others).

(i) Ore exily is an associate o jeinl veature of the cther entily or an assaciate or joint
vertre ef a member of a goup of which the other entily i a member)

{iily  Bcth enlitiss are jourt ventires of the sams third sarty.

(M One entiy 15 a joint vertu-s of a thine party and the other ontiy Is ar associcte of the
hird party.

{vr  The entity is & post-employment benedit plan far the banefit of employses of either tha
Company or an entity related to the Company.

(i} The erty i control ed er jointly cantrolled by a person identifiec T (a).

W) A petsan idertfed in (@) has significant infLence over e erfty or i & member of the
key nanagament persarnel of the entiy for o a parent of the enthy).

Closs membars of the family of 2 porsor 2re these “amily members who may be expected to
influsnce, o” be influaiced by, that porson In their dealings wit the eilily,

Siandards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The Cempany has apelied the following amendments for tha first time for t1el- annual reporting per cd

commanzing * JarLay 2021
* Covid- 19 - Relaled Rent Concessicns - amendmenls 1o IFRS 16, and

*» rravest Haly Ber chmark Reformn - Phase 2 - amendme ms to IF5 8, 18539, IFRS 7, IFR5 4 ard
IFRS "G.

The amendnenls listed above did re. Fave 2y impact on the amounts recognisec in prio” parcds
ard zre not expected fo significanthy afesst the ourenl o Tulure perocs.

Changes in Accaunting Policias
Tee IASE lus issued a nurmbzr of amendments 10 IFR3s thal are “irst effective for the current
seccunlirg pericd of the Cempany. Mone of these developmens hanve hac a materal elfer or now

the Uompary's resulis and financial pasiticn for the currant 22 prior eriods have been prepared o
prasanted in Mote 20k,

Tae Cempaty has ret appliec any new standard or nterarcition thes is not vet effectve for <he
cument accounting periad (Mot 15).
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4.  Met Interest Incoma

uso 2021 2020
H_?Ennturut income

nteré}.i'F_EE.a_w;a_ajs_ .-g-_gchgr.dm from barka e 2 Y
Total interest income T m———— 1541 16,025

All the ckove masésl ircome on nslonsnks wre 57 amordisec cost,

8. Service Fee Income

The priscipa activities of she Corrpary are the creafisn of trusts and the administration arc
manegement of assets in frusts,

Hevanue raprasan s ivassdment manscement fes income samed from fellsw subsidian: as follaws:

Uso 2021 2020
Senics fee income TG00 0,060
Total revenues 290,000 220,000

6. Genersl, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

uso 2021 2020
General administrative and olhar operating expenses e
BRI, oo o e R o S ARGY
Sudlor enLalion i s asassinamieiesasa s TR B M)
Direc-ors' remunasatior, i (106,485) " (107 D)
Total general sdministrative and other aparating experses (111 raa: {11 1.#?5}

Ell et Tha above sxosmflores are pavabls o the Company's immeoite holding conpany and Lhe
imaiedia e Dekig compeny seifles such expenciures on behel of the Comizany,

7. Taxaticn

Trere are re taies on (ncame or gaing n the Cayman lslands and the Comgary has received an
undertaking from the Govamer in Courcil of the Cayman lslands exerrpting it from al local income,
proiils anc capral taxes undil 10 October 2038, Accordingly, no provision “or income tanes is ncluded
in thess financial slalemeals.
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8. Unsconsollidated Struciured Enlilies
Sponzared uncongslidated sl eriiies
The Company conziders itsei® the spansa- of a stractree entity when aithar its name apoears in the
narme ol 1re structured antity or n producls ssued by # or there & a grreal expectst on fram the
manal ke the Company is associated with the stuctured enfity or the Company was invobved in She
desigr o set up of ihe sTuctured solity and tas & form of Invalvement with the struchured wnbily.
The below unconsoldated structured emties are sponsored by the Company where a fixed anml

manzgement fea of USD 5,000 (2020. USD §,000) is recered but ne intersst is 1eld by <he
Compary £8 28 31 Daconbeor 2021:

ﬁgd:ﬂ'l HI:II Ir:r:-ma- .""PEhE. ‘Fund (For Guailed irstivtional lvesio=s Gnl:,r}

“ustrain | ligh Dhidend Eqaty Twin Alpha Fund (For Ouelificd insffutiora Investors On)
US REIT Premiun Fund (—or Cuelifed Insticivnsl resters Onyd
Db Austalan H g Divicend Eqully Alpha Furd TFor Guafhec st il nvestors Orly)
“Principal / C5 Canacian Couity Fund (For Qualified Institufional Imwesters Oy}

Global REIT Trlple F.'ﬁ'ni_l'n Furld {Fu" Calified Imﬁh.ﬁnrml Irenasslons Dnl-uj e
LIS Hlﬂh Dl.r Eq_uﬂu Prariur Fud '[F..Jr Cualiliond Fﬂlluilcrﬁf Imas1crs Cﬁn_z,l

US Srall EhE ng.iy Pramium [ und (For Cuaﬁfud Inslitutional 1mt¢fs Cnv)

Daieea Ema_'gng Lacal Meaﬁet Band Fund (=or Quaﬁiled nsh’hhm;ﬂ Tmstns Cinyl

et L L L LT P e

US T Eraferad FEIT Jnmd'n,,. F-urd TFor alieed 1sbiona Fveslos Dl'l?']

FELL L LT L Lt s EEmEEEEs S mEE R AN A R

wHpEn :;:'aL'j-T’ Prarrium Func {I"ﬂ L aified insiiutona Investons - Tyl

"NE/AMVAN LS RET nesme Fund {For Cruair ed Institutional invasiars Only) -

Baiwa UK High Dividend Equity Furd (Fer Suaffied Instialonal invesions Only)
P il Incore Bond Fnd (For Cualfied instiluiional Ivestors Gy~ 7
“Biazil En:prt; hlp'la Ful'-c_r_{l:t_:rgun![ﬁed Eﬂsmrbn'ml I'wernrs L'Irﬂ}} o "

FETT TP

Dm E'azulnn Ffea] Bond | Furd ? 'F_ér Saifiec. IrﬂﬂJl‘[ﬂ'ﬂJ iestors Clrir}

‘Nissay Japan Bty Aciive Fiiad {F f Qual Ted nstiutiona] investors Gnly)

[y [t B e LT Ll L™

AP Australie, KEIT Fund {l‘ or l:h.lalﬁed I*lsttummi Imresm

(o RET and Real Esiate Exuity Func (For Cusiee Instufional Invesrors On)
E:.I'-'qiu American High Dividand Equ t;, Cwerirn frcome Fuod {H:r Cralified nstiJional bwes ors
'E:armaxmunr:m RErr Suallro ncor s Fure [For Qualiiec istitationsl Iveszors Unly)
:w' ""“‘“_'}'?_'?E Stabls Type (For Ouallied m“"”'“m e U -
USREIT Tripe Ergine Tus Fund (o Uaalfied Institutionsl Tnvestoes Oy~ 777"
USRI Bang FUBE L i s o i
Tokin Marine G-.T Bond Furd

mErEm e A T T

“GieCel High Chidend Equity Premium Fund (or usliied Inslititional Invesices Orly)

sEFsams s

Hisigter's Collection e i R
G~ Fora Foyity Premium Find (Fo- Qualfied inglluoral imesiors Coly) "7
PO Sharl Tem ncome Stategy Tund |
BTG Shor Tomn Stateqy
Daiwa J-REIT Covorac Call Fund {qu Chuailied nsl uliond Investas '-'.l'nl},'l

“Fercign ..remmnate_q May F!.I:L Srat L&'aqragu S-Irsdeg;f Fand

e 0 56 0 I 0 0 0 0 R

5B P et Asial -Tech Venture Fund " T T
ﬁwshthm Banc Fun:l
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Unconsolidated Structured Entities {continued)

USDrﬂmeﬂm"Fw e
Dremtien Carry SirasegyFune

Japanese Goverrmant Band 17-90 Year Ladder Fund (For Ovaified inslibora Irvesters Oy
US Treasury 5-7 Year _addor Fund (For Cualffled inztiufional Iwestos Only™ "
hustrajm REIT F'Ius

T R S s s A s St i

Srinsci World Wrap Growth Type ( {For Gualified i tional Irvestors Oy’
* The fuwis wore erminatee dardng 93‘21

The Compeny has rot provided financial o other supsort to unconsolidaled slicclued e ey that i
was not contrachumlly required 1o provide,

The Comoary doss not curently heve the inberfion to provids franciel or other suppor to
uncarsnidated stuctared enfives that [l is et contractually required to provide.

Cash and Dua from Banks

{ash anil rash eqguaelents comprise:

uso 2021 2020
Cash end due from banks

‘Cash ard due from barks 1,760,686 1,648,798
Total cash and due from banks 1,758 688 1,643,736

10. Other Assels and Qther Lisbilities

Uso 2021 2020
Other assats

Intorest and frees monkaile 21C,B83 L208T0
Total other assels 210,463 220,970
Usp 201 2020
Other liabilties

Interest and fees pavable 235 831 217,833
Total other labilities 223,531 217,933

12
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11. Share Capital
{2}  Authorised and issued share capital

2021 2020

No. of Ush No. of VE)
shares sharas
Authorised:
Crdinary shares of USD | each S 000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,2C0
Isgued and fully pald up:

Crdinzry 5nares Y33C000 TIs000 T35.000

Thz haolders of erd'nasy shares are enlitlad to recclve divideads es declarec from Une 1o tme ard 2re
aqtiled 1¢ one vota per share ot genoml restings of the Comparwy. All ordinary sharss -ank equally
with regard to the Compay's residusi 2sscls,

(h) Capital management

The Cornpany's primary o3sctves when managing ==pital ame to zafaguard the Comoany's abilty to
continge az a going concern so that it can continuz o previde returrs to shoretolders, by pridng
senvices commensurately with the level of dsk and by securing zccoss to finance al a ressonable
coss, A5 the Company is part of a larger group, “he Cempany's tcurses of addional captial and
poicies For distribution of excess capitel may also be affectad by the groun’s capiizl managemant
v ecives, The Compary de” nes "caital” as includng all compenents of equiy.

The Cerpany's capilal struciune is regulvly mmviewec ane managed with due regard fo the cagpiial
managemert practees of the grous fo which 1w Company bekorgs. Adjastments are made o the
capta struchure in light of chanpas in economic conditions alecting the Company or the group, to
the sxdert that thase do not cowflict with the directos” fiduciry duties towarde the Comparry.

The Company was et subject to exdersaly imposec capital requirements in the current period,

12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
Exposure to eredi, iquidiy, inferast rats and “orelgn currency risies anses in e parmal course of the
Compaw's business, Thasa ris<s are managrd by the Compeny's financial manzge nent policizs ard
practices described balow,

(@) Credit risk
The Company's credit risk Is prmardy attfoutable 1o amounts dua frem grous companies and eash et
bwinis, Cradit risk is d=fined as r sk tnak one party to 2 finandal inst-ument will sauss a francal ks lo
anather parly by faling <o discharge an obl caton. Maragemant regulardy maniors its <tk capasuse fo
ercire t1at iis cradic risk s kept o a miniral evel. The maximum sysosure to credd sk s

represenizd by e carrying amount of each financial assetin the siatemant of firancal posttior after
daducling 2ny Impa ment allowarce,

13
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Financial Risk Management and Fair Values {continued)
LlcpicAtty risk

Ihe Company's pi ey & te regaiady moniter itz licuidity requiremets to satsfy ks certmctual and
reasorably fomsnoable obligations asfhey 2l cue.

A1 31 Cecernoer 2051 and 2020, all of the Compary's fivancial babi ifes, which ircludes ol aeditos
273 azcraals, are on demend o uncaled =i s sepected 1o be setifed banwens -hres o taehe
meritks,

Interest rate risk

The Comnpany is axposed to interast rae rsl only to the axtont that - earns bark ivterest on cosh
and deposils. AL B1 NDecember 2021 and 2020, a change In Irerest rates would have no direct
materkl etfect an the camying vl of the resonisad assets or linkil Jes of the Company.

Fotelan currency risk

Tha Company Is expesed ‘o fereign currensy risk primarily throuch serain travsasions which ghe rze
fa payablas that are derominated In Hong Kiong dolizrs ("HED",

As the HKD is paggsd o the U3D, <ne Company corsdors thet -nc risk of movements In exchance
rates betwean USD arc HKD to be insignificant.

Fair values

Tha ramrying amounis of the Company's finencial Instruments carmec at cost o~ amortised cost are
nat materielly diffa-ent Fom their fair vakre asat 3° Decerrber S021 a+d 2020,

Material Related Party Transactions

Ir addtcn o the fransactons and balences disclosed elkeavhere e tha financzl sistements, ke
Comrpany avtered Ints the fallwing malerial readed sarty transactions,

Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2021 31 December 2020°
Parant Fallow Tatal Farant Fallow Total
Giroup Group

Ush Companlkes Campanics
Assals
Cther assels - 0T 210,863 - 220,50 250,803
Total assats - 1M1DAE63 210,863 - 220,863 290,863
Liabilities and
Equity
R B DRRETRRERE ZRET T TIN | ATER L T,
Ghare cogital Ta5,000 - 755,000 T36,L00 o 000
Tatal linbdities and
shareholdars’
equity 458,931 = 858,331 852,933 - 952,533

L TR M5 e R B (i 8 00 £0neT " s comant s presanlatior.
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Material Related Party Transactions {continued)

Related party revenues and axpenses

021 _ 2020
Parant Fellowi Total Parent Fallow Total
Group Group
UsD Campanles Companies
Revenuas
Seroafenincome = 210000 Q000 = 22000C 220000
Total revenues — 210000 210,000 - 20000 220,000

Remuneration of key management personnal

Remuneration of kay managemant personnel (USE) 2021 2020
Shor-tem emalopsa banefils 106,485 107.053
Tolal Rermuneration of key management personneal 105,485 107,003

Parent and Wtimate Helding Company

A4S December 2027, she immediate sarent of the Company | Credit Suizze (Hong <ong) Lirited,
which & ircorporatec in Heng Keng ard she ultimabe contralling party of the Compary is Credt
Susse Group AG, whizh is ncorporated in Swizerland. Credt Susse Group AR procucos financial
slaternents avallable Tor public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

Certain nove accounting sterdsrds, amendmenls lu sccounlivg slandarcs and interpretations have
been publried hal sre not mandatery for 31 December 202" repertirg periccs and have not been
erfly acopied by the Company, These standa-ds, ametdments o- interpretations are not expecied
lvawe & materfad moast on the entity in the current ar Fulure reportine pencds are on forasasable
futare tratzactions.

Subsequent Events

Tacre have veen no matters or droumslances fhat have a3 since the end of e financial periad,
which sigrificanlly af°zcted, o may sigrificantly affect, the operations of 192 Company, 14 resulis of
thase apetaticns, or the state of affairs of the Compeny in furum: firsacal wears.

Approval ef Financial Statements

The ‘irancial skabemenms ware approvec for I5sun By the boarc of directers of the Company o7 10
Juns 2022,
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D) (Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited)

2023 100 3,633

Intertrust N.V.

@) (SMT Fund Services
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Independent Auditors* Report to the Trustee

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Meister"s Collection (the "Series Trust'), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 October 2022, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to

the holder of redeemable participating units and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust as at 31 October 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (""ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of
our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (*'IESBA
Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 1ESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust®s financial reporting process.
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Independent auditors” report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue
as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

27 February 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the” Company”), which are set out on pages 3 to 15,
comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2021, and of itsfinancia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“1FRSS’).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“|ESBA
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.

235/236



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor’s report to the board of directors of

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman)Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAswill always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriatein
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and rel ated
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2022
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